

RINGDALE® UniPort Installation Manual & User Guide

Revision: 1.0 Date: January 14, 2009



Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
Copyright, Disclaimer and Trademarks	
Introduction	ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ
Pro Poquisitos	بة
Inte-Requisites	
Part Numbers	
Step 1: Installing Software	6
Step 7: Installing Johnware	
Siep 2. Connect Ophonal Proximity Reader	۰۰۰۰۱۵ ۱۸
Step 3: Install Optional Fingerprint Reader	
Step 4: Install the Optional Camera	19
Step 5: Start the UniPort Software	20
Menu Bar Options	24
Step 6: Connect to the Database	
Step 7: Setup Admin Users	
Step 8: Configure Groups	30
Step 9: Enroll Users	34
Énrolling Users	35
Enroll card	
Enroll Fingerprints	38
Take Photo	43
Step 10: Register Software	44
Menu Bar Options Details	45
File Menu Options	45
Settings Menu Options	46
Enrollment Options	51
Help Options	51
View Options	
Using the UniPort System	
Logging in or out	
User Found	
EVACIJATION REPORT	
Questions and Answers	
Technical Support Contact Information	۰۰۰۰۰ UT ۲۸
	04



Copyright, Disclaimer and Trademarks

Copyright

Copyright 1997-2009 © Ringdale Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language or any computer language, in any form or by any third party, without prior permission of Ringdale Inc.

Disclaimer

Ringdale Inc. reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time to the contents hereof without obligation to notify any person or organisation of such revision or changes. Ringdale Inc. has endeavoured to ensure that the information in this publication is correct, but will not accept liability for any error or omission.

Note: Because of the fast pace of software development it is possible that there will be minor differences between the manual and the actual release of the program.

Trademarks

All trademarks are hereby acknowledged.



Introduction

Overview

The Installation Guide and User Manual provides complete instruction on how to install and use UniPort.

UniPort is a Visitor Management and Self Enrollment Station. UniPort can also integrate with Ringdale's Sentinel Server Authentication Software to provide a comprehensive access control package that can include an Electronic Visitor Book, and track In and Out times.

Ringdale's UniPort uses the latest in biometric fingerprint technology to provide a fast and effective way to enroll staff and visitors. If integrated with the Sentinel software, the adaptable system may be used as an electronic visitors book using biometrics instead of the normal pen and ink to register guests, log their arrival and departure, as well as provide a highly secure time and attendance system for staff.

UniPort is an easy to use, intuitive software application for Windows PCs. It is Touch Screen compatible and available options include: Fingerprint and Face Biometrics, Proximity Reader, USB Camera, ID Badge Printer and a 15 inch touch panel display.

UniPort provides visitor management and visitor ID badge printing in one system with Fargo or Zebra badge printer support, printers sold separately.

Pre-Requisites

Server Hardware Platform

- CPU
 - o 1GHz or above
 - o The CPU needs to be at least this speed
- Memory
 - o 256MB or above
 - o The memory available in the machine should be at least this amount
- Hard Disk Space
 - o 10GB or above

Operating Systems

- Windows 2000
- Windows XP
- Windows 2003
- Windows Vista



Installation Steps

These are the main steps and the order in which to complete the basic installation:

- 1) Install the UniPort software.
- 2) Connect the optional Ringdale HID proximity reader if you have it.
- 3) Install the optional Ringdale fingerprint reader if you have it.
- 4) Install the optional Ringdale Web Camera if you have it.
- 5) Start the UniPort software.
- 6) Connect to the UniPort or Sentinel database and then restart the UniPort software.
- 7) Add Admin Users.
- 8) Configure two groups: Employees and Visitors.
- 9) Enroll Users.
- 10) Register the software.

Part Numbers

00-13-6000-0001 UniPort Self Enrollment Station

Optional ID Card Printers:

00-34-0400-0120 (USA) 00-34-0400-0240 (UK)



Step 1: Installing Software

Exit all Windows programs.

Insert the UniPort CD into the CD drive of the target PC.

BRD_UniPort_1_34_1_Full.msi

From the UniPort CD directory double-click the executable to start the installation process, following the on-screen prompts.

Open Fi	le - Security Warnii	ng 🔀
The pu run thi	ublisher could not be s software?	verified. Are you sure you want to
- A	Name: RD_UniPor	t_1_34_1_Full.msi
	Publisher: Unknow	n Publisher
	Type: Windows I	nstaller Package
	From: Z:\Control	Devices\UniPort
		<u>R</u> un Cancel
☑ Al <u>w</u> a	ays ask before opening th	is file
8	This file does not have publisher. You should a <u>How can I decide what</u>	a valid digital signature that verifies its only run software from publishers you trust. <u>software to run?</u>

Depending on your operating system, you may get this Security Warning, just click the **Run** button.





Click the **Next** button.



🔡 UniPort Setup		
License Agreement You must agree with the lic	cense agreement below to proceed.	Ó
	RINGDALE	^
sc	OFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT	
READ THE TERMS AND CON CAREFULLY BEFORE USING ("SOFTWARE") YOU AGREE INCLUDES THE LICENSE TO	NDITIONS OF THIS SOFTWARE LICENSE ("LICENSE "LICENSE") THIS SOFTWARE. BY USING THE ENCLOSE TO BE BOUND BY THESE TERMS AND CONI USE AND THE LIMITED WARRANTY.	CENSE") O SOFTWARE DITIONS WHICH
IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF I	D THESE TERMS, YOU MUST RETURN THE SO LICENSING FOR A REFUND.	FTWARE UNUSED
Wise Installation Wizard®	O I accept the license agreement O I do not accept the license agreement <u>R</u> eset	Cancel

Click the "I accept the license $\ensuremath{\mathsf{agreement}}\xspace"$ and then click the $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Next}}\xspace$ button.



😸 UniPort Setup		_ 🗆 🛛
User Information Enter the following inform	nation to personalize your installation.	Ø
Full N <u>a</u> me:	Hostmaster	
Organization:	Network Technology PLC	
The settings for this a share this computer. ` users. Install this appl	pplication can be installed for the current user or for all us You must have administrator rights to install the settings fo ication for:	ers that or all
Wise Installation Wizard®	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >	Cancel

Enter the User Information and select who will use it and click the **Next** button.



🔡 UniPort Setup	
Destination Folder Select a folder where the application will be installed.	Ø
The Wise Installation Wizard will install the files for UniPort in the following folder.	
To install into a different folder, click the Browse button, and select another folder	
You can choose not to install UniPort by clicking Cancel to exit the Wise Installati Wizard.	on
C Destination Folder	
C:\Program Files\Ringdale\UniPort\	
Wise Installation Wizard®	Cancel

Click the **Next** button.



岃UniPort Setup	_ 🗆 🛛
Ready to Install the Application Click Next to begin installation.	Ø
Click the Back button to reenter the installation information or click Cancel to exit the wizard.	
Wise Installation Wizard®	Cancel

Click the **Next** button.

🔡 UniPort Setup	
Updating System The features you selected are currently being installed.	I A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
Wise Installation Wizard®	Cancel





Click the **Finish** button.



After the UniPort software installation you will have a shortcut on your Desktop.



Step 2: Connect Optional Proximity Reader

If you are using the Ringdale HID Proximity Reader, please plug it into the USB port at this time.





Step 3: Install Optional Fingerprint Reader



If you have the Fingerprint Reader please plug them into the USB port at this time.

After installing the UniPort Software, plug the Fingerprint Reader into the USB port. This will bring up the "Found New Hardware Wizard".



Select **No, not this time** and click the **Next** button.



Found New Hardware W	izard
	This wizard helps you install software for: Microsoft Fingerprint Reader
	If your hardware came with an installation CD or floppy disk, insert it now.
	What do you want the wizard to do? O Install the software automatically (Recommended) ③ Install from a list or specific location (Advanced)
	Click Next to continue.
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> > Cancel

When the this panel appears, select Install from a list or specific location (Advanced) and click the

Next button.

Enter C:\WINDOWS\inf



www.ringdale.com

Found New Hardware Wizard	
Please wait while the wizard installs the software	\mathbf{P}
Microsoft Fingerprint Reader	
Setting a system restore point and backing up old files in	
case your system needs to be restored in the future.	

This Hardware Update Wizard panel appears momentarily.

Files Ne	e de d	
	The file 'Usb_FP.sys' on USB_FP Installation Disk is needed. Type the path where the file is located, and then click OK.	OK Cancel
	Copy files from:	<u>B</u> rowse

Browse to the C:\Program Files\Common Files\Ringdale folder.



				?
Look in: 🗀	Drivers	v 3	1 🖻	•
DigitalPerso	ona			
FP_MS25				
<u>1030 (</u> p.37)	1			
File <u>n</u> ame:	Usb_Fp.sys	~		<u>O</u> pen

Click the **Open** button.

Hardwa	re Installation
	The software you are installing for this hardware: Microsoft Fingerprint Reader has not passed Windows Logo testing to verify its compatibility with Windows XP. (<u>Tell me why this testing is important.</u>) Continuing your installation of this software may impair or destabilize the correct operation of your system either immediately or in the future. Microsoft strongly recommends that you stop this installation now and contact the hardware vendor for software that has passed Windows Logo testing.
	Continue Anyway STOP Installation

Depending upon what version of Windows is installed on the target PC, the **Hardware Installation** - **Security Warning** may or may not appear. Click the **Continue Anyway** button.



Found New Hardware Wiz	zard
	Completing the Found New Hardware Wizard The wizard has finished installing the software for: Microsoft Fingerprint Reader
	Click Finish to close the wizard,

The **Completing the Found New Hardware Wizard** panel indicates that the installation of the Fingerprint Reader has been successfully completed. Click the **Finish** button.



Step 4: Install the Optional Camera

Refer to the installation guide that comes with the camera software first. Install your camera software prior to plugging in the device. At the appropriate time, you will be prompted to plug in your webcam by the software installation.

Insert the CD included with your camera. Install the camera software from the CD.

Now choose your installation language and select the type of software to install and follow all of the on-screen steps for installing the camera software.

During the installation you will be prompted to connect your camera to the PC. After connecting your camera, you may need to wait a few minutes before the software detects the presence of your new hardware.

After your camera is detected, you will be shown a screen with a picture from your newly installed web camera.

Next the installer will guide you through the configuration of the audio. Follow the on-screen wizard to configure the audio.

After your webcam and software is installed and upon re-starting, the camera software will automatically launch and you can perform basic functions like taking photos and videos.



Step 5: Start the UniPort Software



After the UniPort software installation you will have a shortcut installed on your Desktop. Start the program from the shortcut or by clicking the **Start** button, then Programs/Ringdale/UniPort and UniPort.

When you first start the program you will get the **Unregistered Application** warning. You will have 30 days to use the software unregistered. If you do not register it before the time is up it will cease to operate.

Unregistered Application
This application is unregistered and may have limitations. Please contact your supplier to obtain a runtime license.
ОК

NOTE: For security purposes, if there is no keyboard activity for 30 seconds, the Administrator is automatically logged-off and returned to the UniPort Desktop. If the Administrator features are still needed, simply log back on as an administrator.



Uni-Port - Unregistered - C:\UniPort\ - test		
		1
		l
	undefined	
KINGUALE		

Click on the **ADMIN** button to bring up the **Password Validation** panel.

Password Validation 🛛 🛛 🔀						
Enter Password						
	ОК					

The default Administration password is <password> (all lower-case).

After 30 seconds of inactivity you will be automatically logged out.



Admin Pan	el
	💉 EXISTING USER
	undefined
	undefined
	MENU BAR
	EVACUATION REPORT
	CANCEL

Click on the **MENU BAR** button to enable the menu bar.



∎	Jni-Port	- Unregist	ered -	Z:\Cont	rol Dev	ices\S	entinel	Access	Contro	l\TnA_	_databas	se\-tna		
Eile	<u>S</u> ettings	Enrollment	<u>H</u> elp	⊻iew										
	ø	AD	MIN				undet	ined			EVACI		N	
			_								REF		_	
Г			תנ	A I I	-									കി
		1114	ש	HLL										

The menu bar (<u>File Settings Enrollment Help View</u>) will stay active for 30 seconds after which time it will timeout and go away, requiring the Admin password to be re-entered.

First configure the database link. From the menu bar, select "**Settings**", "**Database**", and then "**Locate Database**".

Password Validation 🛛 🔀					

The default Password is <password>.



Menu Bar Options

The pictures below show the various menu options. Each will be covered in detail later.

File Menu Options

1	🚰 Uni-Port - Unregistered - Z: \Control Devices \Sentinel Access Control \TnA_database \ - tna 😑 🗖 🔀							
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View				
E	vacuation	Report						
¢	lose							

Settings Options



Enrollment Options

Ø 1	Jni-Port	- Unregist	ered	- Z:\Conti	I Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_da	itabase\ - tna 🗐 🗖 🖹
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View		
		Enroll Ex Enroll Ne Enroll Ne	isting w Empl w Visito	loyee or	_	

Help Options

21	Jni-Port	- Unregist	ered	- Z:\Control Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 🗔 🗖 🔯	
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View	
			Ab	out	
			Lic	ense Information	



View Options

🛃 Uni-Port - Unregistered	- Z:\Control Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 🗔 🗖 🔯
File Settings Enrollment Help	View
	Show Status Hide Menu



Database Sett	ings	X
Microsoft Acces	SQL Server	
	C Local C Remote	
Server:		
Location:		
Password:		
	Test New Browse	
	OK Cancel Apply	

Step 6: Connect to the Database

At the displayed panel, click on the Microsoft Access or SQL Server tab to point to the database that is to be used by UniPort.

Database Settings 🛛 🔀
Microsoft Access SQL Server
SQL Server:
Catalog:
Username:
Password:
Test
OK Cancel Apply

Click the **Test** button to verify the settings. If these settings are correct the message "**Database Valid**" will be displayed. Click "OK" to exit. If the message "**Database Invalid**" is displayed, check all of the settings for the SQL server and test again.

NOTE: Do not proceed beyond this panel until the database settings are correct, indicated by the message "Database Valid" is displayed after the **Test** button is clicked.



Close the Program

After you configure or if you change from one database to another, you must close the UniPort program and restart it to see existing users.

To close the program, bring up the Menu Bar, and then select File / Close.



NOTE: After you configure, reconfigure or if you change from one database to another, you must close the UniPort program and restart it to save your changes and see existing users.



Step 7: Setup Admin Users

Admin Users			×
Username: Pas	ssword Add		Clear
Uniport Admin Users	User Rights	Enable	Disable
	Re-Enroll	0	0
	View Details	C	0
	Edit Details/Top Menu	0	0
	View Security Details	C	C
Remove			Save
To add a user enter a username a the add button. To set user rights the admin list and choose the app remove an admin user select the and click the remove button.	and password and click select a username from propriate user right. To username from the list		Close
remove an admin user select the and click the remove button.	username from the list		Close

Setup an Admin User or two. From the **Menu Bar**, select "**Settings**", and then "**Admin Users**". It will ask for the password at each step. The default password is cpassword>.

Enter a valid Username for an Administrator (<jdoe> for example) and a password. Make certain to write it down or log it somewhere. Click the **Add** button. Select the Uniport Admin User and then enable the appropriate User Rights. When you are done adding Admin Users, click the **Save** button to save the changes and then click the **Close** button to exit.

After assigning at least one admin user, the **Admin Logn** popup will come up when you click on the **ADMIN** button.

Admin Logon		×
Username:		
Password:		
	ОК	Cancel





CAUTION: If you change the database after setting an Admin password that password will stay with the previous database. Any password already assigned to the new database will be required the next time an Admin password is required.

You can access the Admin features from the Toolbar, "Enrollment" or the "Admin" panel on the UniPort Desktop. Either method will require a valid User Name and Password. You can now enroll new employees, enroll existing employees and enroll new visitors. The Administrator will automatically log-out at the completion of each enrollment process and return to the UniPort desktop.



Step 8: Configure Groups

Group Settings		X
List of Sentinel Groups	Add a new group to Sentinel Database	
		Add
	Current Employee Group	
	No employee group set	Set
	Current Visitor Group	
	No visitor group set	Set
	To add a group type in the name and click , Employee or Visitor group, select a group f Set. The current Employee and Visitor grou groups have been setup, click the Create G	Add. To set the rom the list and click p is listed above. If no roups to create groups.
	Remove Group Create Groups	Close

From the Toolbar select "**Settings**" and then "**Group Settings** ... " and add the required Group names that are to be used for UniPort.

In the Add a new group, provide a name, ('Employees' for example) and click the Add button.

Select the Sentinel Group to become the **Employee Group** and click the click that **Set** button.

Select the Sentinel Group to become the **Visitor Group** and click the click that **Set** button.



Connecting people and information

Your **VISITOR** button will now become active.



Admin Pane	l i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
	Z EXISTING USER
	MENU BAR
	EVACUATION REPORT
	CANCEL

When you click on the ADMIN button and enter the correct password, the EXISTING USER, NEW VISITOR, NEW EMPLOYEE, and EVACUATION REPORT buttons should all be active as well.



Admin Panel	
💉 EXISTING USER	
MENU BAR	
EVACUATION REPORT	
CANCEL	

- EXISTING USER This button is used to add biometrics for existing users.
- **NEW VISITOR** This button is used to enroll new company visitors.
- **NEW EMPLOYEE** This button is used to enroll new staff members.
- MENU BAR This button is used to show the menu bar.
- EVACUATION REPORT This button is used to show all users currently logged in.
- CANCEL This button is used to close the dialog.



Step 9: Enroll Users

approved visitors and fill in the screens as appropriate.

Enrollment Form	- Visitors			×
First Name:		Company Name:		
Middle Name:		Address:		
Last Name:		City:		
Username:		State/Region:		
Password:		Zip Code:		
Email:		Vehicle Reg:		
Phone:			Gender	
Please ans Name of your fa	swer the following security questions. vorite color:		O Male	C Female
Name of the city	you were born:			
Name of your fire	st pet:			
			ОК	Cancel

Click on the **NEW EMPLOYEE** or the **NEW VISITOR** button to add each of the employees and

Click the **OK** button when you are finished. If you do not add sufficient information, it will provide an error message. If you wish to cancel the add, then click the **Cancel** button.



After adding the employees and/or visitors, click on the **EXISTING USERS** button to enroll them, add details, or delete them.

NOTE: After making changes to a user there is a pause of about 15 seconds before further changes can be made. The interface will be greyed out until the next options are enabled.

Page 34 of 64



Enrolling Users

Make certain that your fingerprint enrollment reader is plugged in. You should see a gray box in the upper right of your Admin panel if it is.



If the fingerprint enrollment reader is installed and showing on the Admin panel, click the **ADMIN** button and logon.



	_
Admin Panel	
EXISTING USER	
NEW VISITOR	
I SET	
NEW EMPLOYEE	
MENIL BAB	
EVACUATION REPORT	
CANCEL	

After adding the employees and/or visitors, click on the **EXISTING USERS** button to enroll them, add details, or delete them.

Select User to Enroll					X
Enter UserName	:				
Existing Users:					
First Name	Last Name	Faces	Fingers	Card No.	Snapshot
Clifford	Anderson	0	0		No
Keith	Larter	0	0		No
Chad	Thomas	0	0		No
Fred	Tuttle	0	0		No
	_	_	_		
Enroll	Details		Delet	te	Cancel

Either select a user and then click Enroll or double-click on a user.



Enroll card

If you have a proximity reader or a numeric keypad reader installed you will this popup.

About to Enroll Finger			
You are now ready t card. When next scre card to reader unti	o enroll a Proximity en appears, present I number appears		
ENROLL CARD	SKIP		

If you click on the **ENROLL CARD** button you will get this popup:

Card Enrollment	×
Present Card to Enroll	
Cancel	

If you have the numeric keypad reader, enter your assigned PIN code followed by the **#**.

After you present the card it will show in the window.



If the card or number exists you will get the following popup:





Enroll Fingerprints

If you have a fingerprint reader installed you will this message:



Click on the **ENROLL FINGERS** button.

Fingerprint Enrollment - Clifford Anderson	
	OK Cancel
	Finger: Left Little Tools View Verify Delete Re Enrol Fingerprints
	Enrolment Start Enrolment Click Listen to start.
	Listen Port: 9103

Fingerprint Registration

When using the optical USB fingerprint reader for registering users, please read the details below before commencing.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

When using the fingerprint readers please bear the following in mind:

a) Care needs to be taken when setting up users for the fingerprint reader. The more meticulous the approach taken with this procedure, the clearer and sharper the image will be. The stronger the quality of data that is stored, the more reliable and consistent will be the access capability of the user. Below are some tips to help achieve this:

i Ensure the fingerprint sensor is clean (use scotch tape) before starting.

ii User's fingers should be clean (if their hands are washed prior to the start of the procedure, approx. 15 minutes will be needed for the moisture content of the skin to recover).

iii The lights inside the reader will flash while it is reading a fingerprint. The finger should be held on the sensor for two-three seconds when it has stopped flashing, or until it has beeped. Combi readers have a beep. Solos and Duplos send the fingerprint to the server and you may not hear it.

iv The fingerprint should cover as much of the sensor as possible. Place the finger directly on the sensor without sliding across the surface and maintain an even pressure, just enough to get a good full contact. Above all, keep the finger still.

v Present the finger flat to the sensor as shown below:



NOTE

Movement of the finger while it is in contact with the sensor will stretch the skin and thus distort the fingerprint, making a clear reading more difficult. Similarly, pressing too hard on the Standard (Capacitive) reader will also distort the fingerprint. Avoiding these common mistakes can greatly improve the consistency of recognition.

b) Every finger registered will need to be processed four times to ensure a thorough identification is possible.

c) It is recommended that each individual register two or three fingers. There will then be a backup fingerprint that can be used in the event of one of the fingerprints becomes temporarily or permanently altered (for example by a paper cut or minor burn).

d) It is useful to have the fingerprint reader close to the Sentinel Server, or a PC running Sentinel.NET software, when setting up new users.

Use the following procedure to register a fingerprint:



1 Click on the Fingerprints tab to move from the Access Details page to the Fingerprints page. An example is shown below (NOTE: this example is shown with a fingerprint, when viewing for the first time the window will be empty):

141022	and the second	
		Selected Finger:
		View X Re Enroll Finger Print X
		Enrolment:
		Waiting for print #2
(Alama)		Stop Port: 9103

If the port number needs to be changed, click on the **Port: 9103** button and set the required port number (see the Changing the Server Port section earlier in this section for full details on this).

2 Click on the radio button for the first finger that is to be registered. The finger selected will be confirmed.

3 Click on the Listen button and ask the user to apply the correct finger to the sensor of the fingerprint reader. After a few seconds the fingerprint will be displayed on the Fingerprint page.

It is important to get as clean an image of the fingerprint as possible. Don't be afraid to redo the fingerprint if the image displayed is poor. The better the data held for each finger by Sentinel the more reliable will be the recognition by the reader in everyday use.

Don't forget to employ the tips detailed at the start of this section to achieve consistent results of a high standard.

4 Two buttons will now be enabled – Verify and Start Enrolment.

Click the Verify button. This allows the print to be verified to ensure that it does not match too closely an existing print in the database. If this occurs, ask the user to select another finger for registration. After the Verify button has been clicked the following will be displayed:



Click the **OK** button and if happy with the fingerprint click the **Start Enrolment** button to hold this print as the first of the four that are needed for each finger that is to be registered.

NOTE: The Same finger will need to be presented three additional times in total, and will be matched to the first fingerprint - this is to allow Sentinel to learn to recognize the fingerprint.

5 The page will now be displaying a message 'Waiting for Print 2'. Ask the user to apply the same finger to the sensor of the fingerprint reader again. Click the **Verify** button once more. This time the following should be displayed:

Match		×
	Current Print Matched Selected Finger Scored: 239 / 250	

If the fingerprint image is clear and precise enough, the software will display a score that is matched to the first fingerprint.

The match score shows how successfully Sentinel is recognizing each fingerprint.

Any score over 170 is very good. It is recommended that scores lower than 130 be rejected.

Click the **OK** button. If the score is unsatisfactory, click the **Cancel** button and restart the procedure and click **Verify** again until a successful match is achieved. If happy with the score - as in the previous example shown - then ask the user to present their fingerprint again.

6 Repeat the step five for the third and fourth fingerprints.

After each stage check the finger diagram to ensure that the fingerprints are being matched to the correct finger.

At the end of the procedure, the fingerprints can be viewed by clicking on the **View** button. An example of the Fingerprint Image Viewer window is shown following. If the quality of the images is not high, do not be afraid to start again.



Clicking the Delete button will clear all of the held images for that finger to start again with a clean slate. When the registration is complete, it will say enrolment complete.

Do not click the **Re Enroll Fingerprints** button unless you wish to delete all fingerprint data for all fingers held for that user.

7 Try two or three tests to check the access capability of the user by getting the user to provide

additional fingerprints. Click the Verify button after each print appears on the Fingerprint page. The print should be identified with a matching score of consistently over 200. Routine scores below this will require the registration procedure to be repeated to improve recognition. Click the OK button to save the data.

8 Repeat the registration procedure for each additional finger for that user (it is recommended that two or three fingers are registered for each user).

The user set-up procedure is now complete. Click the **OK** button to close the window saving all the information and the user's name will appear on the list in the Users window.

The user can now be associated to specific groups and specific ID readers (see the section Managing Users for More than One ID Reader to complete the user configuration procedures).

IMPORTANT: Until the user has been assigned to a group (and that group is assigned to the device), they will not be able to use their ID to gain access. Complete the full configuration procedures before attempting use.

Repeat the procedures detailed in this section to set up as many users as required.



Take Photo

If you have a Ringdale UniPort camera attached you see the image on the UniPort screen



button where you are ready. The user's photo will show on the User Found - Welcome screen.



Step 10: Register Software

e Settings Enrollment	Help	View		
	Abo	ut		
	LICC	ind in drinddon		
License Inf	ormati	on		$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$
License T	ype:		Unregistered	
Request	Key:	95679F6A94	104E16BEF04E76AF6649	E698B64FA14F0
License K	ey:			
	Ente	arlicense		ОК

To register the software, bring up the **Menu Bar**, and then click on the **Help** menu and select **License Information**.

- 1) Drag the mouse over the **Request Key** and email that to <u>Support@ringdale.com</u>
- 2) When your Request Key is processed you will receive an email back with the License Key.
- 3) Bring the License Information panel back up.
- 4) Click on the **Enter License** button to open that field, and then paste the license key in.
- 5) After that click on the **Active License** button, and then click the **OK** button.

The software should now show UniPort - Registered in the top left.

Uni-Port - Registered - Z:\Control Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna



Menu Bar Options Details

The pictures below show the various menu options. Each will be covered in detail.

File Menu Options

1	Ini-Port	- Unregist	ered	- Z:\Control Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 🗐 🗖 🔀
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View
E	vacuation	Report		
C	ose			

Evacuation Report will generate a report that will show all users currently logged in.

Close will shut down the software.



Settings Menu Options

1	Jni-Port	- Unregiste	red - Z:\Contro	Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 📮 🗖 🔯
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help View	
-	Touch	Keyboard	1	
	Sensit	ivity		
	Server	Settings		
	Sound	2.6		
	Layou	t		
	Camer	a	•	
	Datab	ase	× .	
	Chang	e Password		
	Group	Settings		
	Admin	Users		
	Enable	e Face Recogni	ition	
	Displa	y Evacuation B	utton	

TouchKeyboard will enable the Touch Keyboard for Username, Password, and details entry. If a physical keyboard is not going to be used and the on-screen Touch Keyboard is required, remember to enable it under "**Settings**".



0 📼	n-Sc	reen	Keyb	oard															.) [X
<u>F</u> ile	<u>K</u> eyb	oard	<u>S</u> ettin	gs <u>H</u> e	elp															
esc		F1	F2	F3	F4	F5	F6	F7	F8	I	F9	F10	F11 F12	psc	slk	brk				
·	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 1	3 9	9 ()	-	=	bksp	ins	hm	pup	nik	7	•	•
tal	•	q	•	e	r I	t y	u	i	o	р	I	1	N.	del	end	pdn	7	8	9	
lo	ck	a	\$	d	f	g	h j		c I	Ι	;	•	ent				4	5	6	+
5	hft		z ,	: c	; v	Ь	n	m			1	Γ	shft		1		1	2	3	
ctr		2	alt							alt	2		ctrl	F	Ŧ	•	0	1		ent

If the keyboard is not onscreen you can click the keyboard icon in the lower right to bring it up.







Sentivity... brings up the following panel where you can adjust the sensitivity.

Enrollment Defaults	×
- Face Enrollment	
No. of Templates Regd.	5
Use this slider to adjust the sensit face enrollment	ivity of the
More 7800 Sensitive	Less Sensitive
Finger Enrollment	
Use this slider to adjust the sensit finger enrollment	ivity of the
More Sensitive	Less Sensitive
	Cancel



Sound... brings up the following Sound Options panel where you can select different sounds for different functions.

Sound Options	
Play Sound when User Identified	
Stop.wav	
Play Sound when face Recognis	ed
Ding.wav	
Play Sound when face presented	ł
Ding.wav	
Play Sound when finger presente	d
Ding.wa∨	
ОК	Cancel

Click the ... box to browse for a different sound WAV file.

Click the 🗌 box to test the sound WAV file.



Layout brings up the following Layout Settings panel where you can customize the screen for the company.

Background Setup	Layout Settings			X
 ✓ Default Color ◆ Tile ◆ No Image Select Color ◆ Center ◆ Stretch C\WINDOWS\Prairie Wind.bmp Logo Setup ◆ No Logo ◆ Default Logo ◆ Select Logo Select Logo Z\nlynxlogo.bmp OK Ocnaci	-Background Setup-			
Select Color © Center Image Select Image Select Image Select Image Stretch C.WINDOWS\Prairie Wind.bmp Logo Setup No Logo Default Logo Select Logo Z.\nlynxlogo.bmp		Default Color	Tile	
 Image Select Image Stretch C:\WINDOWS\Prairie Wind.bmp Logo Setup No Logo Default Logo Select Logo User Select Logo Z:\nlynxlogo.bmp 		Select Color	Center	
C.\WINDOWS\Prairie Wind.bmp Logo Setup O No Logo Default Logo User Select Logo Z.\nlynxlogo.bmp	🗇 Image	Select Image	Sireich	
Logo Setup No Logo Default Logo Select Logo Z\nlynxlogo.bmp			- Orision	
Constant Logo No Logo Default Logo Select Logo Z.\nlynxlogo.bmp				
No Logo Default Logo Select Logo Z.\nlynxlogo.bmp OK	- Logo Setup		1	
Default Logo Select Logo Z:\nlynxlogo.bmp Of	🗢 No Logo			
O User Select Logo	 Default Logo 	Select		
Z:\nlynxlogo.bmp	🗢 User Select Logo	Logo		
	Z:\nlynxlogo.bmp			
UN Cancel	ОК	1	Cancel	





The **Camera** setting offers the following options to customize the camera imagery. You must have a Ringdale-supplied camera installed before this function will be enabled.

	Image Size
	Image Source
	Recog. Settings
~	Portrait Image
-	Live Video

Image Size controls the size of the image on the main screen. If you set the image width or image height too wide or too high, the image will not display.

Image Source should only be adjusted by Technical Support.

Recog. Settings brings up the **Face Extraction Settings** panel. It is factory set and should not be changed without Technical Support.

Portrait Image If you have a supported camera, **Portrait Image** should rotate the image through 90 degrees. Typically, cameras have aspect ratios that are 4:3 and a head and shoulders image is more like 3:4. So if one mounts the camera on its side and rotates the image 3:4 is achieved.

Live Video Depending on the camera, live video should only be running when this item is checked. Switching it off should leave you with a still image from the last time it was on.

The **Database** brings up the panel below.



Enable the check for **Log to Sentinel** in order to make entries when users log in or out. The default is checked. See the section on **Database Settings** for more information.

Group Settings is covered in the previous Group Settings section.

Admin Users is covered in the previous Admin Users section.

Enable Face Recognition should be left unchecked.

Display Evacuation Button enables the **EVACUATION REPORT** button on the front panel. When enabled it will show who is currently logged in.



Enrollment Options

🛃 Uni-Port	- Unregistered - Z:\Contro	l Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 🗔 🗖 🔯
File Settings	Enrollment Help View	
	Enroll Existing Enroll New Employee Enroll New Visitor	

These three options bring up the enrolling panels. See the Enrolling Users section for more information.

Help Options

1	Jni-Port	- Unregist	ered	- Z:\Control Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna 🗔 🗖 🔯	
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View	
Abo		Ab	out		
			Lic	ense Information	

The About... option brings up the following panel containing information about the software version.



License Information brings the License Information panel. See the **Register Software** section for more information.

View Options

🛛 L	Jni-Port	- Unregist	ered	- Z:\C	ontrol Devices\Sentinel Access Control\TnA_database\ - tna		\mathbf{X}
File	Settings	Enrollment	Help	View			
				Shi Hic	ow Status le Menu		

Show Status enables the following status information at the bottom of the display when enabled:

Camera Running - X FP Connected - X Card Readers Connected

or

No Camera Located - X FP Connected - X Card Readers Connected

Where X = the number of finger print readers or card readers connected.

Hide Menu shuts down the Menu Bar immediately if you are leaving the area for example.



Using the UniPort System

Logging in or out



Once the system is configured the user can either press a registered finger on the fingerprint reader, wave a proximity card over the reader, or key in their PIN code on a USB keypad (followed by the #) to bring up the **User Found** screen.



If the user is not recognized, you will get the User not recognized pop-up. Just try again, it will occasionally take a few tries. This is normal.





User Found

If your prox card, PIN code, or fingerprint matches an entry in the database, it will bring up the **User Found** popup. Click the appropriate box to log in or out to add or remove your name to the Evacuation Report.

User Found		
Welcome	- (
Mary Doe		
Time: 04:21:4	47 PM	
Please indic	cate arrival [IN] or depart	ure [OUT]
IN	CANCEL	Ουτ



Visitor button

Click on the Visitor button to bring up the NEW OR RETURNING VISITOR dialog.

NEW OR RETURNING VISITOR							
If you are a returning visitor, please enter your username and password to view your details. If this is your first time, please click the New Visitor button to enter in your user details.							
Username:	Username:						
Password:							
Edit Details		Time In or Out					
NEW VISITO	R	Forgot Password					
Cancel							

Edit Details brings up the Enroll Users dialogs covered in Step 9.

Time In or Out brings up the User Found dialog covered previously.

NEW VISITOR brings up the Enroll Users dialogs covered in Step 9.

Forgot Password

If you forgot your password you can







VISITOR BUTTON

If a <u>visitor</u> wants to change details in the database, click on the **VISITOR** button then enter the username and password.



The user must be in the Visitor Group. All other users must access through the **ADMIN** button and the **EXISTING USERS** button.

Click on the **Details** button or press Enter to bring up the **User Details – Edit** window.

Click on the Access Details tab:

User Details - Edit	
Access Details Personal Details Security Details	l
Username: CliffAnderson Password: **** Security Access Level: 0 Card/Pin Numbers 8478 8478 Remove Generate Bandom PIN	ge Snapshot
OK	Cancel Apply



Personal Details tab:

User Details - Edit 🛛 🔀						
Access Details Personal Details Security Details						
		· · ·				
Title:						
First Na	ne:	Clifford				
Middle N	lame(s):	George				
Last Na	me:	Anderson				
Position	;					
Compar	y Name:					
Address	:					
City:						
County/	State:					
Post/Zip	o Code:					
Email:						
Phone:						
Mobile/I	^D ager:					
		OK Cancel Apply				



Security Details tab:

User Details - Edit 🛛 🚺	K)
Access Details Personal Details Security Details	
Date of Birth:	
Name of your favorite color:	
green	
Name of the city you were born:	
Springfield	
Name of your first pet: Snoozer	
OK Cancel Apply	



EVACUATION REPORT

Click on the **EVACUATION REPORT** button to bring up the Evacuation Report that will identify everyone who is currently logged in.

🖻 evac_report.txt - Notepad	×
<u>File E</u> dit F <u>o</u> rmat <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp	
Evacuation Report Date - Friday, Jan 09, 2009 03:45 PM Cliff Anderson - Friday, Jan 09, 2009 08:00 AM Fred Tuttle - Friday, Jan 09, 2009 01:12 PM Frodo Baggins - Friday, Jan 09, 2009 03:12 PM Clint Eastwood - Friday, Jan 09, 2009 03:30 PM	~
	×

If a printer is configured for the PC, then the Evacuation Report can be printed to this configured printer by selecting **File**, **Print**.



Questions and Answers

QUESTION: I pointed to an existing Sentinel database, but it did not look like it sees the existing users in the database.

CAUSE: You must restart the software to see the new database.

SOLUTION: Go to the Menu Bar and do File - Close. Then restart the software.

QUESTION: Even though I pointed to my Access database, it still has Admin users that were in the SQL database.

CAUSE: You must restart the software to see the new database.

SOLUTION: Go to the Menu Bar and do File - Close. Then restart the software.

QUESTION: Why is the Evacuation Report button red?

CAUSE: This is handled by the PC's display properties theme.

SOLUTION: Change your Display Properties - Appearance tab Windows and buttons setting from Windows classic Style to Windows XP Style.

QUESTION: My Locate Sentinel Database is greyed out. How do I enable it?

SOLUTION: This function is no longer available and will be removed in a future version.

QUESTION: When I click on Log to Sentinel nothing seems to happen.

ANSWER: You should see the check next to Log to Sentinel. The action that is taken is to enable the log in to the SQL database when the software is restarted.

QUESTION: Why do you have to log back in after every function that you complete?

ANSWER: This is to be certain that the system is secure at every stage.

QUESTION: Clicking on Evacuation Report does nothing.

CAUSE: Either you have not restarted the software after setting the database up, entered users in groups, or you do not have people logged in.

SOLUTION: Restart the software, make certain that users are assigned to groups, and have some users log in.

QUESTION: Why is there an UNDEFINED button on the first screen?

CAUSE: Either you have not restarted the software after setting the database up, entered users in groups, or there are no staff and/or visitors logged in.

SOLUTION: Restart the software, make certain that users are assigned to groups, and have some users log in.

QUESTION: Why does my Admin Panel have two UNDEFINED buttons?

CAUSE: Either you have not restarted the software after setting the database up, entered users in groups, or you do not have people logged in.

SOLUTION: Restart the software, make certain that users are assigned to groups, and have some users log in.

QUESTION: I am still in a menu doing things and it times out. Can the timeout be extended?

CAUSE: It was determined that 30 seconds was the longest that an inactive Admin interface should be exposed.

SOLUTION: A future version will allow this to be configured.

QUESTION: I cannot enroll a user. I click on Existing User from the Admin Panel but everything is greyed out. Likewise the Existing User is greyed in from the administration toolbar.

I can get to the Enrollment Form - fill it out, click OK, but nothing happens, and nothing is saved.

CAUSE: Either you have not restarted the software after setting the database up, entered users in groups, or you do not have people logged in.

SOLUTION: Restart the software, make certain that users are assigned to groups, and have some users log in.

QUESTION: How do I get the code to register the software?

ANSWER: See Step 7: Register Software for the procedure.

QUESTION: There is a View - Show Status, but it does not seem to do anything... What status should it show?

ANSWER: Once enabled, at the bottom of the main screen it will show Camera Running - X FP Connected - X Card Readers Connected

or

No Camera Located - X FP Connected - X Card Readers Connected

Where X = the number of finger print readers or card readers connected.



QUESTION: There are a bunch of groups that are from the SQL database when I am pointing to the Access database. The group in my test Access database does not show up.

CAUSE: Either you have not restarted the software after setting the database up, entered users in groups, or you do not have people logged in.

SOLUTION: Restart the software, make certain that users are assigned to groups, and have some users log in.

QUESTION: When I install the UniPort software, the Fingerprint panel of the Sentinel software is rendered unusable.

CAUSE: The DLL used by Sentinel is different from the one used by UniPort. For this reason you cannot install both on the same machine.

SOLUTION: Don't install Sentinel and Uniport on the same PC

QUESTION: I click on the VISITOR button then try to open my account to edit my details, but it says "You do not have access to the Visitor group".

CAUSE: You must be in the Visitor group. If the user was added as an Employee they cannot change the parameters.

SOLUTION: This must be done by an Administrator.

QUESTION: Can someone be in both groups?

ANSWER: Yes, but you would have to use another tool (Sentinel, Microsoft Access or a SQL Administrator) to accomplish this.

QUESTION: Where does an administrator see who is in each group?

ANSWER: The Administrator would have to open the database with Sentinel, Microsoft Access or a SQL Administrator tool.

QUESTION: Can I move a user from the visitor to the employee group?

ANSWER: No, you must delete the user from one group before creating them in the other.





Technical Support Contact Information

Ringdale, Inc. 101 Halmar Cove Georgetown Texas 78628 USA

Toll-free: +1 888-288-9080 Phone: +1 512-288-9080 Fax: +1 512-288-7210 Web: <u>www.ringdale.com</u>

Ringdale, Inc. Sales Office 8303 N Mopac Expressway Suite 230 - Building C Austin Texas 78759 USA

Toll-free: +1 888-288-9080 Phone: +1 512-241-0247 Fax: +1 512-288-7210 Web: www.ringdale.com

Ringdale (UK) Ltd. 26 Victoria Way Burgess Hill West Sussex RH15 9NF United Kingdom

Freephone: 0800 214503 Phone: +44 (0) 1444 871349 Fax: +44 (0) 1444 870228 Web: <u>www.ringdale.co.uk</u>

Ringdale Gesellschaft für Netzwerktechnik mbH Fabrikstationsstraße 43 A D-68163 Mannheim Germany

Phone: +49 (0) 621 7186-0 Fax: +49 (0) 621 7186-20 Web: <u>www.ringdale.de</u> Ringdale Japan Shinjuku Nomura Building 1-26-2 Nishi Shinjuku Shinjuku-ku Tokyo 163-0535 Japan

Phone: +81 (3) 3345 2180 Fax: +81 (3) 3344 3949 Web: <u>www.ringdale.com</u>

Ringdale Singapore No.1 Sims Lane #04-06 Singapore 387355

Phone: +65 6749 2285 Fax: +65 6749 5095 Web: www.ringdale.com

Ringdale Hong Kong Suite No.6-7,10F,Tower1 Hong Kong City 33 Canton Rd. Tsimshatsui Kowloon, Hong Kong China

Phone: +852-2865-5393 Fax: +852-2865-5376 Web: <u>www.ringdale.com</u>